
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The May 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held will 
be held on Thursday May 16, 2019 at 6:00 pm at the Big Flats Library, 78 Canal St., Big 
Flats, NY 14814. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please 
inform Ms. Kappanadze  (607-259-2646), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Auditor’s Report 
4.  Approval of minutes (document #2019-25)   
5.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2019-26)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2019-27)  
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report  

Consent Item: Approval of Audit.  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 2018 audit as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of Resignation. 
Resolve that the Board of Trustee approve the resignation of Will O’Dell-Wehling. 

8.  Director’s Report 
Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions for May (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

9.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-28) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-29)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-30) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Dworkin)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee (O'Dell-Wehling) 
10. Executive Session 
11.  Old business     
 a) Memorandum of Agreement with CSEA 
12.  New business 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the APRIL 18, 2019 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board 
of Trustees. Document #2019-25)  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by Vice-President Phyllis Rogan. Present were 
Pat Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Pam Larnard, Martha Smith, Jack Schamel, Lillian White, Karl 
Schwesinger, Rachel Dworkin and Jessica Roberts. Excused were William Wehling, Lee 
Saginario and Bonnie Chollet. Absent: Tim Blandford.  President Marge Kappanadze 
arrived during the Director’s Report. Also present were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, the 
Library District’s Administration. 
 
Michelle Barrett, West Elmira Library Branch Supervisor and Ahnece Hancock were 
present representing their library.  Ms. Hancock shared about her responsibilities at the 
library and Ms. Barrett talked about a new library material being offered to the public which 
will be purchased with Bullet Aid from NYS. Playaway pre-loaded audiobooks, learning 
apps, videos, and read-alongs give libraries everything they need to promote literacy, bridge 
the digital divide, and make technology accessible to everyone. The staff is still working on 
the details of how to circulate these items. They expressed their thanks for the gift from the 
board given to them on National Library Worker’s Day. Ms. Barrett is also responsible for 
Marketing for District-wide events.  
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the March 2019 meeting (Document #2019-19) were presented 
for board review. Ms. Hayes moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin to accept the minutes as 
presented in writing.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
Financial  Report. The March 31, 2019 Financial Report (Document #2019-20) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail to accept the 
Financial Report dated 3/31/19 as distributed. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2019-21). Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. 
Roberts that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 4/9/19 for the General 
Fund - $7,688.58 as distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    

 
Correspondence.   A thank you letter was received from the ARTS Council for renewing 
our cultural partnership with them for another year. The 2018 Annual Report for the 
Southern Tier Library System (STLS) was received.  This will be forwarded to board 
members via email.   Mr. Shaw has been invited to participate in Ernie Davis Academy’s 
Open House on April 24th. He will be touring their new STEAM suite (Science, Technology, 
Engineering, Art & Math).  Ms. Santulli passed around a thank you note from the Steele 
staff for the gifts given to them on National Library Worker’s Day.  
  
Director’s Report.   
Mr. Shaw has sent out the notice to staff for the full-time Administrative Assistant Library 
position.  Cover letters and resumes are due by April 30; interviews to take place the week 
of May 6th with a start date of July 1, 2019.   
 
Mr. Shaw reported that 13 employees have completed the Sexual Harassment Prevention 
Training to date.  He is still expecting that the remainder of the staff will be able to do the 
training at the Spring Continuing Ed day being shared with STLS.  
 



Mr. Shaw reminded board members that the Maker Faire is scheduled for April 27th at 
Corning Community College.  Volunteers are still needed to work at the Faire.  He 
encouraged board members to call if they are available to volunteer at this event.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze arrived just before the consent items.   
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the Service Animal Policy.  Resolved by Ms. Silvernail, 
seconded by Mr. Schamel that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the Service Animal 
Policy as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the Personnel Actions for May (Appendix C). Resolved by 
Ms. Dworkin, seconded by Ms. Larnard that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the 
Personnel actions as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Mr. Shaw reported receipt of a MOA (Memorandum of Agreement) from the union that 
proposes that the Library District close all libraries on the Friday after Thanksgiving 
(currently the Steele Library is open and staff are paid overtime holiday pay).  The MOA 
will be forwarded to the Attorney for review prior to submitting it to the board for their 
review. 
 
Regarding a bed bug issue at Steele, the District has had Orkin Pest Control come in before 
hours and treat the specified area for bugs.  The District has received a quote to have a 
specialized dog come in to check for any infestation.  The cost for one visit is $1,900.  The 
rep from that company has reviewed the staff’s procedures of what they do when detecting a 
bed bug and has stated that we are already doing everything possible to keep an infestation 
from happening.   
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  
 
President’s Report.  President Kappanadze stated that the Friends of CCLD have been 
working on scheduling the Read-A-Thon fund raiser.  It is currently scheduled for October 
4th and 5th, starting at 2pm and ending the next day at 2pm.  Trustees are encouraged to 
participate in this event.  More information will be forthcoming.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2019-22). Nothing new to report. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-23). Mr. Schamel noted that the 
District has received a check from Chemung County for PILOT funds in the amount of 
$58,751.96.  Ms. Santulli noted that the auditors are currently completing their review of the 
Library District’s 2018 finances.  It is planned that they will attend the May meeting of the 
Budget & Finance Committee with a draft copy of the 2018 Audit.  If the Committee finds 
no problems, the final audit will be reviewed with the board at their May meeting in Big 
Flats.  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-24).  Mr. Shaw reported 
that installation of the wall for the Teen Space at the Steele Library is going as planned.  
Furniture is expected to be installed next week.  The moving of the NonFiction shelving to 
accommodate A.D.A. requirements has begun.   



 
Regarding the boiler at the Steele Library, an inspector from the Hartford Steam Boiler 
Company did his semi-annual inspection and certified it for the next 2 years.  His opinion is 
that a new boiler is not necessary. His contact information has been given to Gary Morenus 
from the County Buildings & Grounds in order for them to discuss this issue and determine 
whether or not a new boiler is needed at this time.  The boiler is past its expected life so the 
District is on borrowed time with a possible replacement.   
 
New Flood Insurance information was received from the Chemung County Planning 
Department.  The information has been forwarded to our insurance agent at Perry & Carroll.  
The District branch libraries that need flood insurance are already covered.  
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Dworkin stated that the Committee will meet next week to 
review the results of the surveys sent out for the Director’s annual evaluation.  They will 
meet with Mr. Shaw prior to the next board meeting when his evaluation will be discussed 
with the full board.  
  
Election & Continuity Committee. Ms. Rogan stated that as of their last meeting, it is 
believed that they have found a person interested in serving in the 13th District (Blandford).  
Their next meeting is scheduled for May 1st.  Discussion ensued regarding different ways to 
get the word out to the public regarding upcoming vacancies on the board.  A letter will be 
drawn up for vacancy in the 9th District and Ms. White has stated that she is willing to 
distribute them.  
 
Advocacy Committee.  No meeting this month.  It is necessary to recruit new members to 
this Committee and if possible to include a member of the Community to also serve on the 
Committee.  
 
Old Business.  The board discussion of the Sexual Harassment Prevention Training will 
take place at the end of this meeting.  Ms. Dworkin will facilitate the steps for certification.  
Certificates of completion will be given to board members and filed in the Business Office.  
 
New Business.  Condolences from the board were given to Ms. Rogan on the passing of her 
brother.   
 
It was mentioned that the CCLD by-laws for the board state that the board needs to do a 
“self-evaluation”.  This has not been done since the District was formed.  Ms. Kappanadze 
stated that this some research will be done on what this evaluation should entail and that it 
can be planned for sometime this summer.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:43pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, May 16th, 2019 at 6:00pm at the Big Flats Library, 78 Canal Street, Big 
Flats, NY. 

















 Document #2019-28      
 
Report of the May 1st, 2018 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive 
Committee were Marge Kappanadze, Phyllis Rogan and Jack Schamel; and Joan Santulli, 
CCLD management. Other board members in attendance were Lee Saginario, Rachel 
Dworkin, Ann Hayes, Lillian White, Pat Silvernail and Pam Larnard. 
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 5/1/19 for the Grant 
Fund - $605.92 and the General Fund - $56,249.26. Ms. Larnard moved, seconded by 
Ms. Dworkin to approve payment of the bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Kappanadze stated that she is looking for trustees to join an ad-hoc group to 
review the draft of the 2019-2021Strategic Plan to give feedback or to meet with the staff 
committee who drew up the plan. Please let her know if you are interested in serving.  
 
Director Ron Shaw gave an update on the status of the Teen Space construction.  Four 
current employees have applied to become the new Teen Space Clerk.  Interviews will be 
held next week.  A “soft” opening of the Teen Space has been scheduled for May 28th.  
 
Regarding the opening for a full-time Administrative Assistant, one current staff member 
has applied.  The interview is expected to take place next week.  
 
Maker Faire 2019.  The event was a success with approximately 1,200 people attending.  
The event was held at Corning Community College’s gym and commons area.  Staff 
members have already heard a lot of positive feedback regarding the event.  Staff from 
CCLD, CCC and the Corning Library will be meeting to go over the plusses and minuses 
regarding this event to determine what works and what needs to be done differently next 
year.  Maker Faire 2020 is planned to be scheduled in the fall, most likely in September.    
 
Board members discussed ways to get the word out to the public regarding the trustee 
election.  Ms. Larnard has contacted the Village of Horseheads and they have agreed to 
put a notice in their fall newsletter to residents.  She also contacted the Horseheads 
School District who has agreed to put the election notice on the website and in their 
social media.  Ms. Saginario stated that she will contact the Elmira School District about 
this matter.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, June 5th, 2019 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-29 
 
Report of the May 8th, 2019 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Lillian White and Marge 
Kappanadze. Also attending were Katherine Stickler and Gena Rapisardi, auditors from Mengel, 
Metzger & Barr and  Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 
8:00am.  
 
Ms. Stickler reviewed the preliminary draft copy of the Library District’s 2018 Audit Results. 
There were no disagreements with management and nothing new to report in the Required 
Communications. There were no material weaknesses found and the only significant deficiency 
is the same one each year – to convert the financial records from Cash basis to Accrual basis for 
the audited financial statements. In their Qualified Opinion, with few exceptions, the Library 
District’s financial statements ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the USA.   
 
Ms. Santulli presented the April 30th, 2019 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 5/8/19 for the General Fund - $187,623.79.  
The bill list includes two larger invoices for the Teen Space – Dimon & Bacorn for moving of 
shelving and Meteor Education to pay for the furniture. The Unpaid Bills Details will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:38am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, June 12th, 2019 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-30 
 
Report of the May 1st, 2019 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Schwesinger, Ms. Saginario and Ms. Kappanadze. Also 
attending was Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Teen Section.  The shifting of shelving units/books is complete and all furniture has been installed. 
The AV equipment is being installed today and the computers will be installed soon. Minor jobs 
still pending are installation of electrical sockets and moving of the sound domes.  The Elmira 
College Library is interested is some of the extra shelving that CCLD will not be utilizing.  It is 
expected that the project will be completed by the end of May.  
 
Other Steele Projects.  Boiler. Following a discussion with the rep from the Hartford Steam Co, Mr. Morenus 
from the County Buildings & Grounds ( who has been maintaining the current boiler for years) has stated 
that there is no way to tell how long the current system will last.  He stated that CCLD could replace the 
boiler in phases.  He suggests purchasing two boilers, one for a backup plus one backup pump.   
 
Outdoor Sign & Renovation of the Staff Room/Kitchen area.  Mr. Shaw has received an estimate from Bob 
Butcher to be the project manager for these two jobs.  He is awaiting an estimate from Andy Harding before 
bringing them to the board.  
 
West Elmira Library. The County Buildings & Grounds has given an estimate of $4,500 to replace 
the 2 furnaces.  In the future they will alternate which furnace starts up the heating season so there 
is more equal use of the two furnaces.  If the AC unit needs replacing, the estimated cost is $8,000.  
They are looking at replacing the furnaces in mid-September.  The amount that CCLD has in its 
reserve fund for the West Elmira Library will cover the cost of both of these projects.  
 
Van Etten Library. Mr. Shaw plans to visit the Village Hall building in VanEtten to determine what size may 
be available for the library to move into that building and to determine what questions to ask once a decision 
has been made by the Town of Van Etten.  He has heard nothing from the Van Etten officials regarding this 
possible move.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:40pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, June 5th, 2019 
at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2019-05
	Document 2019-25
	Document 2019-26
	Document 2019-27
	Document 2019-28
	Document 2019-29
	Document 2019-30

